
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

ALCOHOL, ENTERTAINMENT & LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 
LICENSING COMMITTEE

to be held on
FRIDAY, 11 JANUARY 2019

at
10.00 AM

in 
STUDIO 1, THE GUILDHALL ARTS CENTRE, COUNCIL OFFICES, 

ST. PETER'S HILL, GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ
Aidan Rave, Chief Executive    

Chairman
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth

Councillor Robert Broughton
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman

Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor Bob Russell
Councillor Mrs Sarah Stokes
Councillor Frank Turner
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman)

Committee Support
Officer:

Lucy Bonshor Tel: 01476 40 61 20
E-mail: l.bonshor@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1  APOLOGIES 

2  DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 5 OCTOBER 2018 (Pages 3 - 14)

(Enclosure)



4  LICENSING ACT 2003: MEETING TO DECIDE IF A COMMITTEE HEARING IS 
REQUIRED (Pages 15 - 55)

Report CSL160 by the Licensing Officer, Legal and Democratic Services.
(Enclosure)

(THE APPENDICES TO THE REPORT AT AGENDA ITEM 4 ARE ATTACHED FOR 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS ONLY. IF ANY OTHER MEMBERS WISH TO SEE THE 
SUPPORTING INFORMATION, PLEASE CONTACT LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES)

5  ANY OTHER BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASON OF SPECIAL 
CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT. 



MINUTES
ALCOHOL, ENTERTAINMENT & 
LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT 
LICENSING COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2018

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman)
Councillor George Chivers
Councillor Phil Dilks
Councillor Nikki Manterfield
Councillor Bob Russell
Councillor Frank Turner

OFFICERS

Licensing Officers (Christian Smith, Richard Etherton)
Legal Advisor (Mandy Braithwaite)
Democratic Officer (Lucy Bonshor)

78. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors’ Broughton, Kaberry-
Brown, Kingman, Sarah Stokes and Ward.

79. DISCLOSURES OF INTERESTS

None disclosed.

80. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 AUGUST 2018

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 August 2018 were agreed.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

It was anticipated that, in accordance with Section 100A (4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) the public may be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business because of the likelihood that 
otherwise exempt information, as described in paragraphs 1, 2 and 7 of the Act (as 
amended) would be disclosed to the public.

3

Agenda Item 3



The Chairman informed the Committee that she was using her discretion as Chairman 
to change the order of the agenda and that agenda item 5 would be dealt with first.   
She stated that both agenda items 4 and 5 were linked and depending upon the 
outcome of the transfer of the Premise licence it may be that the paperwork had not 
been served on the correct parties, therefore the Review of the premises would be 
dealt with first.

The Barrister representing Mr Kalamohan felt that there was a legal issue with regard 
to excluding the press and public from the meeting and also the order of proceedings 
as she had stated at the last meeting in relation to the applications.  The application to 
transfer the Premises Licence was submitted and took immediate effect. Mr 
Kalamohan by virtue of the immediacy would be the Premise Licence holder.  Mr 
Kalamohan was licenced to trade until the Committee determined the transfer.

The Legal Advisor to the Committee referenced Section 43 and Section 42 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 in connection with the transfer of the licence and also Section 52 
(ii) of the Licensing Act in connection with the Review and the reason why the Review 
was being dealt with first.  The content was down to interpretation.  

The Barrister representing the Police agreed that they were happy for the Review to 
be dealt with first rather than the transfer. The provisions continued until determined 
by the Local Authority and he felt that the discretion was properly exercised.  

81. LICENSING ACT 2003: APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISE 
LICENCE FOR TODAY'S EXPRESS, 20 MARKET PLACE, GRANTHAM 
NG31 6LP

Decision:

To revoke the Premises Licence for the premises known as Today’s 
Express, 20 market Place, Grantham NG31 6LP.

The Legal Advisor introduced those present and confirmed who was to speak 
in connection with the application.

Mr Chris Jeyes, Counsel for the Police
Sergeant Kim Enderby, Lincolnshire Police
PC Gina Mc Conville, Lincolnshire Police

Ms Sarah Clover, Counsel for Mr Kalamohan
Ms Andrea Forrest, Solicitor for Mr Kalamohan
Mr Arumugam Kalamohan, applicant
Mr Nathan Niroshan, Area Manager (Today Local)

Members had been circulated with report CSL154 which concerned a Review 
of an existing premises licence for Today’s Express, 20 Market Place, 

4



Grantham which had been submitted by Lincolnshire Police on 22 June 2018 
under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.  Where a relevant application for a 
review was received, the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing to determine 
the application.  On 28 March 2017 a premises licence was granted to S R 
Food City, 20 Market Place, Grantham.  The Premise Licence holder was Mr 
Philippe Sugunakumar who was also the Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS).  On 2 May 2017 an application was received from an agent, working on 
behalf of Mr Sugunakumar to vary the licensable hours of the premises and to 
change the trading name of the business to Today’s Express. Following a 
representation made by Lincolnshire Police, a responsible authority under the 
Licensing Act 2003 the application was withdraw by the applicant on 11 June 
2018. Also on 11 June 2018 an application was received from the agent, to 
transfer the premise licence to Mohan Retail Ltd.  At the same time an 
application was received to vary the DPS and Mr Arumugam Kalamohan was 
nominated.  

On 21 June 2018 a representation for the transfer application was received 
from Lincolnshire Police under the objective of the Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder.  On the same date, a representation was also received from 
Lincolnshire Police in respect if the application to vary the DPS again under the 
objective of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder.  The date of 13 July 2018 
was set for the Committee to decide upon both applications.

On 22 June 2018, a review of the premise licence was submitted by 
Lincolnshire Police on the grounds of all four licensing objectives.  The review 
had been sought as the Police had acquired evidence that the premise had 
employed someone who did not have the rights to work in the United Kingdom.  
The Police had also found alcohol on display for sale which was below the 
permitted price as set out in the mandatory licensing conditions. The premise 
was also non-compliant in respect of the licensing conditions for the premises.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Licensing Committee in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the Council, and taking into consideration the views of the 
solicitor acting for the applicant and Lincolnshire Police, it was decided that the 
hearing to address the representations for both of the applications as well as 
the hearing for the Review, could be held on the same date.  The Committee 
meeting for 13 July was adjourned to 17 August 2018.    One of the reasons for 
this was that the evidence for the licence transfer and to vary the DPS 
representations were identical apart from the information for the Review which 
contained additional Home Office guidance on banning the sale of alcohol 
below the cost of duty plus VAT.

When the Committee met on 18 August 2018 further information was submitted 
by the applicant, due to the large number of documents the Committee agreed 
to adjourn the meeting to a future date to enable all parties to read and digest 
the further submissions.

On 1st October 2018 the agent on behalf of the applicant submitted an 
application in respect of the DPS in the name of Barathy Selvarajah and 
withdraw the application submitted on 11 June 2018 to nominate Mr 

5



Kalamohan as the DPS. 

The Barrister, Mr Jeyes then made the Police’s representation.  The application 
for review had been done under Section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003.  Mr 
Jeyes then referenced Sections, 11.26. 11.27 and 11.28 of the Guidance 
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of reviews 
arising in connection with crime.   He referenced in particular illegal working, 
criminal activity and the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.  
Where reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime 
prevention objective is being undermined, serious consideration should be 
given to revocation. Mr Jeyes then gave some background to the review.  The 
Police conducted a visit to Today’s Express on 6 June 2018.  The Police found 
a number of concerning issues with regard to the premises including non-
compliance with conditions contained on the licence and also alcohol on 
display for sale which was below the mandatory price and a worker who was 
found to have no right to work.  Although paper work indicated that Mr 
Sugunakumar was running the business when contacted he claimed he knew 
nothing of the major variation and that he had sold the business and was no 
longer in charge or alcohol sales.  He indicated that the business had been sold 
in October 2017 to “Mohan” and a sub-lease for the premises had gone through 
in May 2018.  Documents to support these dates were requested.

Members had been circulated with a folder which contained better quality 
photographs of those that had been previously circulated. Mr Jeyes highlighted 
various photographs which seemed to indicate that Mr Kalamohan/Mohan 
Retail Ltd were running the business earlier than the date given.  Photographs 
showed utilities bills and also invoices for alcohol sales with Mr Kalamohan’s 
name on them earlier than the May 2018 date, also included was a letter 
concerning stock valuation dated 15th October 2017 which indicated that Mr 
Kalamohan had an interest in the business before May 2018.

Mr Jeyes then referenced the Karpackie lager that had been on sale at the time 
of the Police visit on 6 June 2018 which was below the mandatory minimum 
pricing, displaying alcohol for sale below mandatory minimum price, regardless 
of its provenance was an offence under 136 of the Licensing Act 2003.   

Mr Jeyes then referred to the illegal worker that had been found at the 
premises and the lists that had been found which seemed to detail the hours 
worked by employees.  Some of the weekly working hours were exceedingly 
long with the employee being paid below minimum wage and this raised a 
significant number of questions in relation to working practices and obligations 
of an employer.

From the information that the Police had, it suggested that Mr Kalamohan was 
involved with the business earlier than had been stated and that no effort had 
been made to comply with the conditions of the licence until the Police had 
visited the premises. It appeared that Mr Sugunakumar had no involvement in 
the business at the time of the Police visit and stated that he was unaware of 
the major variation and he had sold the business in October 2017, although 
other than an e-mail from Mr Sugunakumar confirming this no other 

6



documentation had been submitted. The Police felt that an attempt had been 
made to mislead both the Licensing Officers and the Committee over who was 
responsible for the premise.  The sale of alcohol below minimum price was a 
breach of both the Premise Licence and the Licensing law.  Commercially this 
was unsustainable and did not make commercial sense. It strongly suggested 
that they were not a legitimate purchase and that some form of criminality was 
involved.  

Mr Jeyes then spoke about what the Police saw as glaring errors in respect of 
the illegal worker and the documents that he submitted and the checks 
undertaken concerning the providence of those documents.  The Police 
referred to the inconsistences with the documents which on face value raised 
serious questions, if the employer was acting legitimately.  Reference was then 
made to taxation and PAYE in respect of the employees.  The Police felt that 
the information that had been produced in relation to HMRC purported to the 
date of the business transfer in May 2018 however, no reference had been 
made to the employee within the spreadsheets to payments at this time, a later 
date had been used and it was the Police’s view that efforts were being made 
to produce a document which had a veneer of respectability that was lacking in 
order to mislead the Committee.  This taken together with the breaches of the 
Premise Licence conditions including in relation to the operation of the CCTV 
equipment in the Police’s view could be seen as serious criminality reasons for 
the Committee to seriously look at revocation of the licence.

Ms Clover then questioned Mr Jeyes on the information that had been put 
forward stating that the submission had gone beyond the information previously 
given and the Police were now talking of serious criminality, defrauding HMRC, 
defrauding by not paying duty on alcohol as well as mentioning smuggling and 
reversing the burden of proof.  She felt that what had been said was far beyond 
what was contained in the documentation and was seriously prejudicial 
especially in relation to attempting to have false and fraudulent documents.

Mr Jeyes stated that these were the general headlines from the Review 
application and he again highlighted these.  The respondent had put forward 
the information which the Police were querying the providence of and they 
would fail in their duty if questions were not asked.  Ms Clover felt that what had 
been said was not reflected in the paperwork and was not set out in the 
statements.  Mr Jeyes indicated that the Police could make enquiries about the 
documentation that had been put forward including the UK Border Agency 
documents and the payments made by the employer to see if any serious 
criminality had taken place.  Ms Clover felt that if these points had been raised 
previously then points of law and case law could have been disclosed and she 
felt that advance notification of the points should have been made, it was not 
appropriate for her to “guess”.  Mr Jeyes again stated that the Police had the 
right to ask about the providence of the documents in the possession of the 
respondent and make points in relation to these.  Further discussion followed 
between Mr Jeyes and Ms Clover concerning the documentation that had been 
supplied and the inferences that had been made by the Police.  Reference was 
made to Section 11.24 of the guidance issued under Section 182 in relation to 
reviews arising from crime.  Further discussion followed and the Legal Advisor 

7



advised all parties that the Committee had been given all papers. The 
Committee were fully aware of the position in relation to the Review and the 
grounds that the Review was being applied for.  If the Committee were content 
that they had all the evidence before them there was nothing stopping them 
from making a decision based on that evidence.  If they consider the Review 
application and that the grounds are clearly defined and the further supporting 
documentation is considered that would not prejudice the respondent.  It was a 
matter for the Chairman if the Committee were happy to proceed or whether 
they considered that they did not have enough information at this stage.

Ms Clover felt that certain matters had been thrown “into the ring” and it was 
not fair that the application was proceeded with.  She felt that it was not fair and 
proper and she asked for clarification of the information before the Committee 
from the Police which she felt was not evidenced.

The Legal Advisor informed Ms Clover that she would have the opportunity for 
the respondent to put forward their case in response to the Police and it was a 
matter for the Committee to weigh up the evidence.

Further discussion followed concerning the documents that had been submitted 
by the respondent and Ms Clover asked for a list of offences from the Police 
and asked if she could have an adjournment to consult with her client.  It was 
agreed to adjourn the meeting for 20 minutes.

(11:18am meeting adjourned)
(11:38am meeting reconvened)

Ms Clover then presented the representation on behalf of her client.  She 
thanked the Committee and stated that the Committee was not a criminal court 
and that those present should not forget the substance of the meeting.   She 
felt that a number of things in relation to the Premises needed to be raised.  
There had been no reports in relation to the licensing objectives of conflict, 
difficulties or complaints about the premise before the Police visit.  There had 
been no breaches or any reason to visit the premises prior to the application to 
vary the licence being submitted.  Following the Police visit breaches of 
conditions were found which included the outgoing Premise Licence not being 
surrendered, the DPS still being in Mr Sugunakumar, although an application to 
vary the DPS to Barathy Selvarajah had been submitted who was acting 
Manager of the premises during May/June.

Ms Clover indicated that Mr Kalamohan had trusted his manager to have due 
diligence and compliance within the licensing context.  The Police were looking 
at things from an historical nature and she referred members to the guidance 
issued under Section 182 which was there to protect the public.  She stated 
that there had been no issue with regard to members of the public.  She spoke 
of the Police’s case and the documents that had been supplied by Mr 
Kalamohan and the accusations that had been levied against Mr Kalahmohan 
in respect of these documents and the potential offences.  She said that neither 
Trading Standards nor the Police had taken any action against any persons 

8



involved other than to submit the review.  It was not for the Licensing 
Committee to punish in the context of criminal offences and her client did not 
accept any wrong doing.  She then gave background information about the 
premise.  She stated that negotiations had taken place between Mr 
Sugunakumar and Mr Kalamohan between October 2017 and May 2018 but 
this did not impact the business.  She referred Members to emails that had 
been sent by the agent dealing with the premises in connection with the 
premises licence, DPS and the variation.  Mr Kalamohan and been involved in 
paying some of the bills of the business and stated that it was a business 
matter between gentleman.  She felt that the reference that Police had made to 
Mr Kalamohan paying some of the bills was a “red herring”.    She said that 
under licensing law the Police could only object to the transfer of the premise 
licence under exceptional crime and disorder circumstances.  She had asked 
the Police for a direct answer in relation to the exceptional circumstances and 
the she felt that the Police had responded by calling her client a fraudster which 
was a very high bar if that was the Police’s case, as the Police had not sought 
any criminal action.  She felt that by putting the application before the 
Committee rather than the courts was strange.  Her client was not a sole 
operator, Mohan Retail was a national concern with over 30 shops.  If her client 
was a fraudster why had no other Police force submitted any documentation, 
this was the first in many years of trading.     The variation was withdrawn in 
June 2018.   She felt that the Police had not specified their objection as it could 
only be exceptional other than the crime and disorder licensing objective had 
been undermined, the context was that her client was a fraudster, if this was 
the case then why had no criminal offence been brought only this police force 
under Section 136 of the Licensing Act 2003 and prosecuted as such.  The 
potential offence was failure to comply with the Licensing Objectives but the 
Police had not taken this further and no one had been interviewed under 
caution or the case submitted to the Crown Prosecution Service with potential 
offences. She again referred to the Guidance issued under Section 182 
particularly Section 11.20 and any remedial action taken should generally be 
directed at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate 
and proportionate response to address the causes of concern that instigated 
the review and she felt that this step was not required and all licensing activities 
she felt were back on track.  She then referred the Committee to 11.23 which 
dealt with modifications.  She stated that this was for businesses that were 
found currently to be trading in an in appropriate way and she indicated that the 
information before the Committee was historical and breaches to conditions 
had been addressed.  She referred to the sale of alcohol which was only in 
relation to one brand of lager and gave reasons for the low charge.   She 
indicated that stock had been taken over from Mr Sugunakumar and there was 
no question that the purchase had been made illegitimately.    It was not 
exceptional to sell at a loss, stock that was near its sell buy date and she felt 
that the Police had made an assumption in relation to the stock and the 
purchase of it.  She indicated that the stock had been bought legitimately and 
lawfully.  She then spoke about the employment of the illegal worker and the 
documents that had been submitted.  She felt that this information was 
irrelevant as the worker had left on 6 June 2018.  Discussion then followed 
about the information contained in the documents submitted in relation to hours 
and wages and the accusations made by the Police.  Discussion then followed 

9



in connection with the non-compliance found in relation to the Premise licence 
conditions which had all been addressed since the Police visit.

Questions were then put to Ms Clover and Mr Kalamohan (answered through 
Mr Niroshan) by the Police which included the definitive date that the business 
was transferred, the reasons behind bills being paid by Mohan Retail before the 
business was transferred, the checking of documents and what form of 
documents were checked, the timing and reasons that the illegal worker had 
been let go, the fact that although Ms Clover had indicated that no other 
premise licence had been revoked, the Police had evidence that a licence had 
been revoked at another store for underage sales of vodka.  The Police again 
raised the issue of the documents concerning hours and pay and it was their 
summation that they were in respect of the illegal worker. Reference was also 
made to the undervalued sale of the Karpackie lager and the checking of 
documents.  It was confirmed that a new enhanced check list for employees 
was now in use. 

The Licensing Officer clarified to the Committee that the date that the transfer 
took place was 8 June 2018 but no payment was received until 11 June 2018.

The Licensing Officer then gave his closing statement and the options available 
to the Committee as contained within report CSL154 with regard to the 
application before them having regard to guidance issued under Section 182, 
all representations made and documents circulated and the promotion of the 
four licensing objectives together with South Kesteven District’s Council’s 
Licensing Policy.   In deciding which of the powers to invoke, the Committee 
were expected as far as possible to seek to establish the cause or causes of 
the concerns which the representations had identified and any remedial action 
taken should generally be directed at those causes and should always be no 
more than an appropriate and proportionate response.  The Committee should 
therefore take a stepped approach to the problem.

Mr Jeyes gave the Police’s closing statement.  He asked the Committee to 
have regard to the licensing objective for the prevention of crime and disorder.  
There were questions arising from the documents submitted and the conduct of 
the business.  The Police had no confidence in the manor that the business 
was being operated.

Ms Clover gave Mr Kalamohan’s closing statement.  She referred to the 
Police’s allegations against her client, that he was a fraudster and she felt that 
these were wholly inappropriate and she invited the Committee to disregard 
these allegations. She stated that the Police had not prosecuted her client and 
the matters had not been taken further.  All questions asked had been 
answered by Mr Kalamohan through Mr Niroshan. Issues had been addressed 
and the illegal worker had been resolved.  She felt that as far as the premise 
licence was concerned there was no proper basis for the licence to be revoked. 
Changes to the premise licence conditions would be an appropriate and 
proportionate way forward if the Committee felt that this was necessary.

(1:05pm Licensing Officers, Police and all other Parties left the meeting)

10



Members considered the application for Review before them having regard to 
all the relevant guidance, policies and the representations made together with 
all documents circulated.  From the evidence presented the Committee felt that 
Mr Kalamohan had been involved with the business prior to the Police visit in 
June and the selling of the business on 14 May 2018. They were also 
concerned about the sale of the Karpackie lager that was being sold under the 
permitted price which was a serious breach of both the Licensing Objectives 
and also the law and noted that it had not been removed following the first visit 
by the Police.  The employment of an illegal worker was also a serious 
undermining of the licensing objective for the prevention of crime and disorder 
and was a real concern to the Committee.  Members noted that the poor 
compliance with the breaches found on the first visit by the Police seemed to 
have been addressed but they were still concerned with how the business 
appeared to be run especially considering Mr Kalamohan was involved with 30 
other businesses.  A period of suspension was considered but Members felt 
that with the evidence that they had before them revocation was an appropriate 
and proportionate response.  On being put to the vote this was seconded and 
unanimously agreed.    

(2:45pm Licensing Officers, Police and all other Parties returned to the 
meeting)

The Legal Advisor read of the Committee’s decision. Having taken in to account 
report CSL154 and all associated appendices including appendices 5 and 6 of 
report CSL153 and all additional papers, guidance issued under Section 182 of 
the Licensing Act 2003 together with the Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy and all representations made the Committee were satisfied that the 
evidence before them showed clear breaches of the Licensing Objectives.  
Following the Police visit on 6 June 2018 poor compliance was found in relation 
to the CCTV not retaining footage for 31 days, no authorisation to sell alcohol, 
no staff trained to BIIAB level 1, no refusal records in relation to alcohol sales, 
no refusal policy notice on display, no recruitment procedure was in place with 
evidence of employees right to work, no signage requesting customers to leave 
quietly and no staff training record.  The Committee did acknowledge that these 
breaches had been addressed.  The sale of alcohol under the permitted price 
was unlawful and on 12 June 2018, 329 cans of Karpackie lager was still being 
offered for sale below the permitted price which was a serious breach together 
with the employment of an illegal worker.  The Committee were satisfied that 
the evidence showed that Mohan Retail/Mr Kalamohan had involvement in the 
running of the business before and at the time of the Police visit.  Mohan Retail 
operated 30 stores and Mr Kalamohan should be aware, in the Committees 
view of trading responsibilities and of the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives.  The display of alcohol below the permitted price and the 
employment of an illegal worker meant that the Committee had no confidence 
that the prevention of crime and disorder would not be undermined at the 
premise and therefore having considered all the evidence, the Committee felt 
that revocation was a proportionate response and they unanimously agreed 
that the premise licence be revoked.

11



The decision was appealable to the Magistrates Court within 21 days.

82. LICENSING ACT 2003: APPLICATION FOR A TRANSFER OF A PREMISES 
LICENCE AND TO VARY THE LICENCE TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATED 
PREMISES SUPERVISOR

Decision

To reject the application to transfer the Premise Licence for Today’s 
Express, 20 Market Place, Grantham. 

The Licensing Officer presented report CSL153 which considered the 
application for the transfer of a premises license under Section 42 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  Where a chief officer of Police was satisfied that the 
exceptional circumstances of the case were such that granting the application 
would undermine the crime prevention objective, he must give the relevant 
licensing authority a notice stating the reasons why he was so satisfied.  Where 
a notice was given under section 42(6), the authority must hold a hearing to 
consider it unless the authority, applicant and the chief officer of police who 
gave the notice agree a hearing was not necessary.  

On 28 March 2017 a premise license was granted to S R Food City, 20 Market 
Place, Grantham. The Premise Licence holder and DPS was Mr Philippe 
Sugunakumar.  On 2 May 2018 an application was received from an agent 
working on behalf of Mr Sugunakumar to vary the licensable hours of the 
premises and to change the trading name to Today’s Express.  On 8 June the 
Police submitted a representation objecting to the variation.  On 8 June Mr 
Sugunakumar contacted the Licensing Section and said that he had no 
knowledge of the variation and that he had sold the business on 14 May 2018 
and a new owner was responsible for the premise licence.  The Licensing 
Officer informed Mr Sugunakumar that the Authority had not received an 
application to transfer the Premise Licence or to vary the DPS, until an 
application was received he would remain as the premise licence holder and 
DPS.

On 11 June 2018 an e-mail was received from Mr Sugunakumar stating that he 
wished to withdraw the application to vary the licence.  On the same date 
applications were received from the agent to transfer the premise licence to 
Mohan Retail Ltd and at the same time vary the DPS to Mr Arumugam 
Kalamohan.  Both applications were to have immediate interim effect.  The 
Police had 14 days in which to submit any representation to either application.  
On 21 June 2018 representations were received from Lincolnshire Police under 
the objective of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder in relation to the transfer 
of the premise licence and to the variation of the DPS.  The agent confirmed 
both representations had been received. The Police objected to both 
applications following a visit to the premises on 6 June 2018 at which there 
were incidents of non-compliance with the licence conditions.    Alcohol was on 
display for sale below the permitted price as set out in the mandatory licensing 
conditions.  Not all Members of staff knew how to operate the CCTV system 
which did not retained footage for 31 days, a member of staff was found not to 

12



have the right to work in the UK.  The Police also believed that Mr Kalamohan 
had an interest in the business before 14 May 2018 and was therefore aware of 
the non-compliance with the licence conditions and the employment of an 
illegal worker. 
  
On 22 June 2018 a review of the premises licence was submitted by the Police. 
The consultation period ended on 20 July 2018. The Review was scheduled to 
be held on 5 October 2018.  On 1 October 2018 an application was received to 
vary the DPS to Barathy Selvarajah.

Ms Clover on behalf of the applicant stated that every submission that had 
been put forward in relation to the Review hearing that had been heard was 
relevant to the transfer of the licence and she did not intend to repeat the 
information already put forward. She did not accept the determination that had 
been given in relation to the Review hearing.

Mr Jeyes on behalf of the Police also indicated that their submission for the 
transfer was identical to that which had been put forward for the Review.  If the 
Committee had no confidence as per the decision given for the Review than 
that should apply to the transfer of the Premises Licence.

Ms Clover on behalf to the applicant referred to the visit that had been 
undertaken by the Police on 4 October 2018 in relation to the premise and the 
current operation of the premise.  Sergeant Enderby confirmed that the 
premises had been visited on 4 October 2018 and indicated that the business 
was being run slightly better but felt that this was only due to the Police visits. 
He referred to issues still being had with the CCTV system but this was due to 
the timing being out.  The refusals log was being completed, but the gentleman 
who was completing the log had not been trained accordingly.  Ms Clover 
stated that the gentleman in question was being supervised at the time by the 
manager Barathy Selvarajah.

The Licensing Officer then gave his closing statement to the Committee. He 
reminded the Committee to have regard to all representations and to take such 
steps as it considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objective in 
respect of crime and disorder.  The steps available to the Committee were to 
grant the transfer of the licence or reject the application.

Ms Clover made her closing statement and the recent visit made by the Police 
which showed that the premises was compliant. She acknowledged that 
breaches to the conditions of the premise licence had been made but these 
had been addressed and there was no reason not to transfer the premise 
licence.

Mr Jeyes then gave the Police’s closing statement and concluded that although 
the conditions of the premise licence were currently being complied with that 
did not indicate that this would continue in the future.

(3:00pm the Licensing Officer, Police and all interested parties left the meeting)

13



Members considered the application for the transfer before them having regard 
to all the relevant guidance, policies and the representations made together 
with all documents circulated.  From the evidence presented the Committee felt 
that Mr Kalamohan had been involved with the business prior to the Police visit 
in June and the selling of the business on 14 May 2018. They were also 
concerned about the sale of the Karpackie lager that was being sold under the 
permitted price which was a serious breach of both the Licensing Objectives 
and also the law and noted that it had not been removed following the first visit 
by the Police.  The employment of an illegal worker was also a serious 
undermining of the licensing objective for the prevention of crime and disorder 
and was a real concern to the Committee.  Members noted that the poor 
compliance with the breaches found on the first visit by the Police seemed to 
have been addressed but they were still concerned with how the business 
appeared to be run and the Committee did not have confidence in the 
management of the premises and therefore it was proposed, seconded and 
unanimously agreed to reject the application to transfer the premise licence.

(3:27pm the Licensing Officer, Police and all interested parties return the 
meeting)

The Legal Advisor read out the Committees decision. Having taken into 
consideration the report, the Licensing Act 2003, Section 182 guidance, the 
Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, representations made the Committee 
are satisfied that from evidence there are clear breaches of the Licensing 
objectives. The report detailed the poor compliance with some of the conditions 
and having heard evidence today the Committee are satisfied that some of the 
breaches have been addressed.   However, the serious breaches of employing 
an illegal worker and alcohol being displayed for sale under the permitted price, 
which is unlawful and also the fact that 329 cans of Karpackie lager were 
seized following the Police’s second visit on 12 June 2018 as the lager was still 
being offered for sale below the permitted price.  The Committee are satisfied 
that Mohan Retail Ltd had involvement with the running of the business before 
and at the time of the Police visits.  The company, Mohan Retail Ltd had 30 
stores which operate and the Committee were of the view that with its 
experience it should be trading responsibly and promoting the four licensing 
objectives.  The Committee had no confidence that the licensing objectives in 
particular the prevention of crime and disorder would not be undermined and 
therefore reject the application for transfer.

The decision could be appealed within 21 days. 

83. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 3:30pm.

14



ALCOHOL, ENTERTAINMENT & LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT LICENSING 
COMMITTEE

Report of: Christian Smith, Licensing Officer, Legal & Democratic Services

Report to:

Date:

Subject:

Alcohol, Entertainment & Late Night Refreshment Licensing 
Committee.

11 January 2019

CSL/160 - Meeting to decide if committee hearing is required.

Relevant 
Cabinet 
Member:

Councillor Dr Peter Moseley

Cabinet Member for Environment

Report author:

Reviewed by:

Name: Christian Smith, Licensing Officer 
Tel:  01476 406080
E mail: c.smith@southkesteven.gov.uk

Name: Shelley Hardy, Legal Executive
Tel:  01476 406080
E mail: s.hardy@southkesteven.gov.uk
Date:    24 December 2018

SUMMARY
The purpose of this report is to provide the Committee with information to enable it to 
decide whether it agrees with the applicant and the Lincolnshire Police that a hearing is 
not necessary.

Lincolnshire Police, a responsible Authority, made a representation under all four of the 
licensing objectives. The objection was to the conditions on the application.

The applicant has agreed to the conditions suggested by the Police and wishes to have 
these conditions replace those on the original application.

15

Agenda Item 4



RECOMMENDATION
That the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Committee  consider this 
application for a premises licence at a premise known as, Adnams Cellar & Kitchen 
Store, Bath Row Warehouse, St Marys Passage, Stamford. Lincolnshire PE9 2HG. 
and the views of the representations made by Lincolnshire Police, bearing in mind the 
four licensing objectives:

 The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
 Public Safety
 The Prevention of Public Nuisance
 The Protection of children from harm.

Where relevant representations are made, the Licensing Authority must hold a hearing 
to consider them, unless the Licensing Authority, the applicant and each person who 
has made representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary. For the purposes of 
the Licensing Act 2003, the Authority is the Alcohol, Entertainment & Late Night 
Refreshment Committee.

The Licensing Authority may have regard to the representations and if it considers it 
appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing objectives:

(a)    grant the licence subject to the conditions to be modified to such extent 
as the Authority considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives or;

(b)    hold a hearing to decide if the modifications are appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives.

The Licensing Authority should  give appropriate weight to:

(a)  The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.
(b)  The representations (including supporting information) presented by the     

parties.
(c)   The guidance issued under section 182 of the licensing Act 2003.
(d)  South Kesteven District Council’s Licensing Policy          

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 On 22 November 2018 an application was received by the Licensing Team for 
a variation of a premise licence at Bath Row Warehouse, St Marys Passage, 
Stamford. PE9 2HG. (Appendix 1 refers)

1.2 The premises have held a premise licence since 23 February 2007. This allows 
the sale by retail of alcohol and the playing of recorded music between the 
hours of 10:00 hours until 22:00 hours, Monday to Sunday inclusive.(Appendix 
2 refers)

1.3 The application to vary the premise licence is to amend the hours to sell alcohol 
by retail, to the new times of between the hours of 08:00 hours to 22:00 hours 
Monday to Sunday inclusive.

16



1.4 On 5 December 2018 a representation was received from Lincolnshire Police 
under the licensing objectives of The Prevention of Crime and Disorder and the 
Protection of Children from Harm. (Appendix 3 refers)

1.5 The representation stated that no extra conditions were offered in the 
application and that the existing conditions were inadequate.

1.6 Lincolnshire Police had consulted with the applicant to suggest alternative 
wording and conditions.

1.7 Included with the representation is written confirmation from the applicant to 
agree to the Police suggestions and changes. (Appendix 3 refers)

1.8 For the benefit of the Committee members, Officers from the Licensing Team 
have supplied the following information, taken from Guidance Issued under 
Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  This relates to General Principles – 
Licence conditions 1.16 and 1.17 (Appendix 4 refers)

1.9 Officers from the Licensing Team have also supplied the Committee members 
with further information taken from Guidance Issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 under: Determining Applications 9.1 to 9.44. (Appendix 5 
refers)

 
2. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

N/A

3. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

N/A

4. RISK AND MITIGATION 

4.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are 
included in the table below:

Category Risk Action / Controls
Nil None

5. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS (EQUALITY, SAFEGUARDING 
etc.)

N/A

6. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

6.1 Crime and disorder implications will be considered in accordance with the 
licensing objective and the duty to consider in accordance with s.17 of the 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998

17



7. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

7.1 There are no specific financial implications associated with this report, however, 
in the event of an applicant, responsible authority or interested person making 
an appeal against a decision which was then subsequently upheld, the council 
may incur additional legal costs.

8. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

8.1 When determining the application, the Committee should consider the guidance
issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the District Council’s own   
statement of Licensing Policy. Decisions taken should be reasonable,   
proportionate and appropriate for the promotion of the four licensing objectives    
when considered against the representations and evidence supplied.  

9. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES 

N/A

10. APPENDICES 

1. Application
2. Premise Licence
3. Representation from Lincolnshire Police
4. Licence Conditions – General Principles 1.16 to 1.17
5. Determining applications – 9.1 to 9.44

11. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Statement of Licensing Policy, 6 January 2016.
           www.southkesteven.gov.uk/licensingpolicy

          Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachme
nt_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_
Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf

18

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/licensingpolicy
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Document is Restricted

38

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2018
	4 Licensing Act 2003: Meeting to decide if a committee hearing is required
	CSL160 Appendix 1
	CSL160 Appendix 2
	CSL160 Appendix 3
	CSL160 Appendix 4
	CSL160 Appendix 5


